## **Britannia Education Trust**

(A company limited by guarantee)

**Annual report and financial statements** 

For the year ended 31 August 2023

## Contents

	Page
Reference and administrative details	1
Trustees' report	2 - 13
Governance statement	14 - 17
Statement of regularity, propriety and compliance	18
Statement of trustees' responsibilities	19
Independent auditor's report on the financial statements	20 - 24
Independent reporting accountant's report on regularity	25 - 26
Statement of financial activities incorporating income and expenditure account	27
Balance sheet	28
Statement of cash flows	29
Notes to the financial statements	30 - 56

#### **Britannia Education Trust**

(A company limited by guarantee)

### REFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE DETAILS

**Members** A Mawson

> D Mann G Hicks H Thomas

A Moore (appointed 23 November 2023)

**Trustees** R Burton (1), Chair of Trustees

> E Boxer H Fernandes L Bingham (1) L Dawes (1) S Monaghan T Peake (1) D Verroken

S Obadan (appointed 17 April 2023) J Gordon (appointed 6 December 2023)

(1) Member of the Finance and Audit Committee

Company registered

number 10689559

**Britannia Education Trust** Company name

office

Principal and registered Britannia Village Primary School

Westwood Road West Silvertown

London E16 2AW

**Company secretary** R Thackery

Senior Leadership Team L Bingham, Executive Headteacher

O Moorhouse, Head of School R Thackery, Business Manager C James, Chief Financial Officer

Roksana Hussain, Headteacher (appointed 01 September 2023) Kiel Richardson, Headteacher (appointed 01 September 2023)

Independent auditor Kreston Reeves LLP

> **Chartered Accountants** Statutory Auditor Montague Place Quayside

**Chatham Maritime** 

Chatham Kent ME4 4QU

### Trustees' report For the year ended 31 August 2023

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditors' report of the charitable company for the year ended 31 August 2023. The annual report serves the purposes of both a Trustees' report, and a directors' report under company law.

The Trust operates two 2 form entry primary academies in Newham, London that are within a 5 minute walk of each other:

Britannia Village Primary School (BVPS), an Academy for pupils aged 3 to 11 years serving a catchment area in West Silvertown, Newham. It has a pupil capacity of 420 plus a 30 FTE nursery (60 part time) and had a total roll of 419 plus 54 part time nursery in the Summer 2023 school census.

Royal Wharf Primary School (RWPS) which opened in September 2019 with reception pupils only and expanded to include Year 3 in the 2022/23 year. RWPS had a capacity of 240 plus 30 FTE (60 part time) nursery and had a total roll of 243 plus 60 part time nursery in the Summer 2023 school census.

#### Structure, Governance and Management

#### Constitution

The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company's memorandum and articles of association are the primary governing documents of the Academy Trust. The Trustees of Britannia Education Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law.

Details of the Trustees who served during the year and to the date these accounts are approved are included in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 1.

#### Members' Liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a member.

#### Trustees' Indemnities

In accordance with normal commercial practice the Trust has purchased insurance to protect Trustees and Officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on Trust business. The Britannia Education Trust is covered through the Department for Education's Risk Protection Arrangements (RPA). The insurance provides £10,000,000 cover on any one claim and details of the costs are included in note 14 to the accounts.

### Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees

The arrangements are as set out in the Articles and Funding Agreement.

Trustees may be appointed by the Members, elected by parents or co-opted by the Board of Trustees and are in post for four years. The CEO is an ex officio member of the Board of Trustees. Parent Trustees are elected to office or appointed if there are insufficient candidates offering themselves for election. The Articles of Association allow members to appoint up to nine Trustees. There must also be a minimum of two Parent Trustees. The Board of Trustees may also appoint additional Trustees (Co-opted Trustees) under rule 58. Employees of the Trust (including the CEO) must not exceed one third of the total number of Trustees.

Trustees' report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2023

### Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees

The Charitable Company is committed to providing adequate opportunities for Trustees to undertake and receive suitable training so as to enable them to perform their role effectively. To this end the Trust provides an internal programme of continued professional development led by School staff and links with a number of local training providers. Trustees complete an annual skills audit, which alongside identifying strengths, also identifies areas they would like to develop. This is then used to inform targeted training in specific areas. In addition the Trust purchases a Service Level Agreement (SLA) from the local school's service Governors Support Section, which offers a comprehensive package of training and support.

All new Trustees are entitled to an induction to the role, according to their need, which may include, introductory sessions, mentoring and formal courses. This process will involve a meeting with the Chair of Trustees and CEO. All Trustees have access to a handbook plus copies of policies and procedures documents that are appropriate to the role they undertake as Trustees with particular emphasis on the committee work that they will undertake.

### **Organisational Structure**

The governance structure of the Trust is defined in the Memorandum and Articles of Association together with the Funding Agreement with the Department of Education. The Scheme of Delegation (Appendix C) sets out the level at which decisions are made.

The Board of Trustees, which meets on at least three occasions per year and each individual committee at least three times per year, is responsible for the strategic direction of the Trust and its Academies. The Board reviews progress towards educational objectives and results; monitors the budget; sets the budget for the following year; and sets the organisational staffing structure. A pay committee agrees the performance objectives of the CEO and reviews them. The CEO agrees and reviews the performance objectives of the Head(s) of School. The CEO is the designated Accounting Officer and has overall responsibility for the day to day financial management of the Charitable Company. Responsibility for low values of expenditure is delegated to specific budget holders who are responsible for managing their own departments within their allocated budgets. A system of financial controls is in place to manage this process.

The CEO/Executive Head oversees both Schools and is the current Head of Royal Wharf. BVPS is managed by the Head of School. During the year the Senior Leadership Team (SLT) which included three Deputy Heads, an Assistant Head, a Senior Manager and the School Business Manager assisted the Head of School and Executive Head and had Trust wide elements to their roles and responsibilities as well as school specific.

#### Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

The Trust applies the School Teachers Pay and Conditions Document (STPCD) published annually by the DfE. The Trust has adopted the Local Authority pay policy which follows the STPCD regarding pay scales and ranges. This policy applies to all staff including key management personnel.

The Trust has adopted the Local Authority performance management policy. All staff, including the SLT, have clear performance management targets closely linked to the Trust's development plan. If all targets are met and clear evidence provided, the staff member receives an incremental point (until reaching the top of the pay range) in line with the policy, recommended by their line manager and authorised by the CEO.

For experienced teachers to gain access to the upper threshold, in addition, a professional portfolio must be presented to the Head of School for assessment. The Trustees receive anonymised reports detailing performance grades, meeting of targets and upper threshold payments.

For the CEO's appraisal, the Chair of the Trustees and up to two other Trustees meet to review the CEO's evidence against the agreed targets. If targets have been met the Chair of Trustees will approve the pay award.

The procedure is minuted at Finance, Audit and HR Committee meetings.

# Trustees' report (continued) For the year ended 31 August 2023

#### Trade union facility time

#### Relevant union officials

Number of employees who were relevant union officials during the relevant period	Full-time equivalent employee number
2	1.6

#### Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time	Number of employees
0%	O TO SOURCE OF THE SOURCE OF T
1%-50%	2
51%-99%	0
100%	0

#### Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time

Provide the total cost of facility time	£1,737
Provide the total pay bill	£3,985,761
Provide the percentage of the total pay bill spent on facility time, calculated as: (total cost of facility time ÷ total pay bill) ×100	0.04%

#### Paid trade union activities

Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of total paid facility time hours calculated as: (total hours spent on paid trade union activities by relevant union officials during the relevant period ÷ total paid facility time hours) ×100	
--	--

### Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations

Owing to the nature of the Trust's operations and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from local public and private sector organisations, it is inevitable that from time to time transactions will take place with organisations in which Trustees may have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted at arm's length and in accordance with the Trust's financial regulations and normal procedures. Any transaction where the Trustee may have a pecuniary interest is only undertaken in accordance with the 'at cost' principle described in the Academy Trust Handbook.

The Trust cooperates with the following organisations in pursuit of its charitable activities:

- SEND and Behaviour Support services are purchased from the Local Authority.
- HR, Health and Safety, Governor and ICT services are purchased from The Education Space (formerly Newham Partnership Working).
- The CEO and Head of BV School are members of the Newham Association of Primary Headteachers (NAPH).
- The Creative Arts Partnership is a cluster of 6 schools. The Heads meet to plan joint school projects and discuss school improvement issues.
- The Trust works with Oasis Academy Silvertown to aid transition from Year 6 to Year 7 and jointly sponsor a West Ham Mentor who works across both Schools.
- The Trust works with and supports the work of West Silvertown Foundation (WSF) to provide services and events to benefit the Trust's families.
- The Schools fundraise on behalf of several charities including the British Legion Poppy Appeal, Water Aid, Save The Children Fund, BBC Children in Need Appeal, Joy for Humanity, Shelter and others. The Trust does not have a formal sponsor.

Trustees' report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2023

### **Objectives and Activities**

The principal object and aim of the Charitable Company is the operation of its Schools to provide free education and care for pupils of different abilities between the ages of 3 and 11.

#### **Objects and Aims**

The Trustees and Members have defined the main objectives of the Trust as follows:

Our vision is to bring out the best in our pupils, our staff and our communities.

- We aim to give our pupils the best start in life through providing a creative and happy learning environment where achievement, mutual respect and self-esteem are valued.
- We aim to empower our pupils to have the necessary knowledge, skills, values, attitudes and understanding to make a positive contribution in a changing world both locally and globally.

We will:-

- Create safe, supportive, caring environments where children can flourish.
- Provide a broad, balanced, child-centred creative curriculum which is both accessible and appropriate to all our pupils.
- Demonstrate, expect and celebrate excellence in Achievement, Behaviour and Character.
- Develop and nurture an outstanding staff team.
- Be rigorous in the pursuit of inclusion and equity
- Forge strong partnerships with parents and families.
- Work cooperatively within the Trust and with other schools, organisations and stakeholders.
- Equip children to become responsible global citizens, caring for the natural world and making wise, informed choices.
- Involve our Schools in the community and the community in our Schools.

## **Objectives, Strategies and Activities**

The Trust's main objectives for 2022 - 2023 were:

### Governance

Ensure that Trustees have a range of relevant skills, know the Schools well and have the knowledge they need to make decisions that will result in excellence for pupils and the School communities.

### **Finance Strategy**

Ensure probity, regularity and sustainability in managing the Trust finances. Ensure that value for money is obtained through robust internal controls and well managed relationships with suppliers. Adhere to regulatory and statutory requirements and follow best practices for financial planning. Manage reserves to ensure that resources are deployed to support all aspects of the Trust Development Plan.

#### **Education Strategy**

Ensure the long term sustainability and continuity of excellent high quality education and experiences for pupils in the Trust's Schools.

- Continue to focus on achieving high standards for our pupils with end of key stage assessment results being above the national average (CEO/Curriculum Committee/Heads of Schools/leaders)
- Keep the Trust's curriculum provision under review, taking into consideration statutory changes, reliable educational research and the changing needs of our pupils. (CEO/Curriculum Committee/Heads of Schools/Subject leaders)

# Trustees' report (continued) For the year ended 31 August 2023

Staff recruitment and development

- Develop the Trust's teacher recruitment and retention strategy to address the current teacher shortage
- Develop staff to perform at their best.
- Ensure Succession planning for Schools' leadership.

#### **Growth Strategy**

Develop the long-term viability of the Trust:

- Establish Royal Wharf Primary School in its' new building from September 2020
- Continue to review how the Trust operates as Royal Wharf Primary School grows
- Explore the potential for adding other new schools to the MAT
- Have a positive influence within and beyond Newham

Strategic development of Trust's sites

- Identify site development needs across the Trust's school sites
- Plan for ongoing maintenance and general improvements to school sites

#### **Public Benefit**

The Trustees believe that by working towards the objects and aims as detailed above, they have complied with their duty to have due regard to the guidance on public benefit published by the Charity Commission.

### **Strategic Report**

#### **Achievements and Performance**

#### **Pupil numbers**

All year groups are at capacity (at 60 pupils). However, in both schools some year groups have had over 60 pupils where there have been successful appeals and where the Trust has admitted siblings in order to keep families together.

### **Nursery and Reception numbers for September 2023**

Royal Wharf nursery was full for September with a waiting list, while Britannia Village had just a few spaces. Reception classes in both schools are full for September 2023 and have long waiting lists. Royal Wharf was the most oversubscribed school in the borough being oversubscribed by 73% for admission into reception for September 2023. As part of our transition process, all new families have had an opportunity to tour the school, attend a Teddy Bear's picnic where they are able to meet other families and meet their reception teacher in school before the summer break.

### **Pupil attendance**

Attendance at both schools was below the trust's target of 96% - 94.5% at Britannia Village and 94% at Royal Wharf, however, this is above the national average of 93.8%.

### **Teacher Recruitment and Retention**

Retention is high with only 5 teachers leaving at the end of the year. This was 10% of teachers on average employed by the Trust during the year which compares to 9% nationally in 2021-22. Recruitment has been very successful and there are no current vacancies for teaching staff. The Trust has recruited a mix of NQTs and more experienced teachers. Internal appointments have been made to middle and senior manager positions (year group leaders, subject leaders and senior leaders), and unpaid facilitation roles have been offered for staff to gain leadership experience.

A very significant achievement this year was the recruitment of a new headteacher for each school for September 2023. The advert attracted a strong field of candidates and 2 experienced heads were appointed. At Britannia Village the appointment followed the retirement of the previous headteacher while at Royal Wharf, the appointment was part of the succession planning process, as the school moves into its 5th year with pupils up to Year 4.

Trustees' report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2023

#### **Support Staff Recruitment and Retention**

Currently the Trust's support staff are supplemented by a number of agency staff, some of whom have specialist SEND skills. The Trust continues to offer permanent employment to some and this is a reliable strategy for gradually increasing the Trust's support staff team with tried and tested staff.

#### Governance

Following the resignation of a parent trustee, a new parent Trustee was appointed for Britannia Village. The Trust board ended the year with the minimum requirement of 9 trustees.

### **School Improvement**

The Trust has strong school improvement capacity led by the Trust's Senior Leadership Team who meet weekly with a focused agenda.

School improvements are detailed in the SDP (School Development Plan) and progress on the plan is recorded on the same document and reviewed at least termly. The Trust's rigorous monitoring and evaluation cycle contributes to this self evaluation process which is reported to the Curriculum Committee termly. The Trust's CPD programme is used to promote high standards and consistency in all areas within the life of our schools.

### Promoting a consistent approach to teaching and learning (SDP priority)

The quality and consistency of teaching is monitored each term through a robust program of lesson observations, learning walks, drop-ins, book looks and planning checks and this gives the leadership confidence in the quality of teaching, learning, marking and assessment. All teachers receive feedback and support, if required, is organised by the year group SLT link. This year the monitoring focus has been on Reading, Writing and Maths.

The Trust continues to use the Cornerstones Essential Skills documents to enable teachers to plan the delivery of key skills in all subjects. As teachers cover specific skills, they insert links in the documents to specific lessons and activities that develop the relevant skills. The relevant skills are highlighted green so that teachers can see at a glance which skills are yet to be developed. The Essential Skills documents are invaluable as they help teachers to plan and to become familiar with skills progression from one year group to the next.

### **Google Educator Training**

The trust aims to have all teaching staff qualified to at least level 1 in Google Educator training by the end of a school year. This enables staff to teach using technology in innovative ways.

#### Inclusion

The trust has introduced a Learning Pathways model for all learners on the SEND register (Pre-formal, Semi-formal Explore, Semi-formal Challenge, Formal). Our SEND staff working in the trust's SEN classrooms attended a training day with Dersingham and Calverton schools to see learning pathways in action and all staff had training on the new pathways and what a day would look like for children within each pathway.

#### Promoting Pupils' Wellbeing

Pupils enjoy a rich and varied curriculum including weekly French lessons from Year 3 and Music lessons from Year 1, themed enrichment weeks, residential visits and the use of technology to enhance learning. Our arts curriculum is a strength, with visits from and to orchestras, theatres and musical performances as well as work with local artists. Creative homework projects and a creative approach to the delivery of the curriculum ensure pupils benefit from a variety of opportunities to develop their own talents and interests. A wide range of clubs (sports, academic, intervention and enrichment based) are offered at both schools.

Trustees' report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2023

The take up of these clubs is very high. The school has well established systems of pastoral support including onsite access to a counsellor and Safeguarding Officer, as well as strong links with external agencies such as children's social care, speech and language therapists and specialist teachers.

Provision for SMSC is excellent with pupils having the opportunity to explore new ideas and experiences throughout the curriculum, incorporating our bespoke Qualities for Life. Our curriculum design allows for pupils to constantly share and reflect on their own experiences, alongside the experiences of others. This aids pupils in developing a strong understanding of the difference between right and wrong, supported by discrete lessons taught through our PSHE curriculum.

High profile school events, such as 'Careers Week' and opportunities to apply for a variety of pupil leadership roles ensure that children are fully involved and engaged in the values of the school and wider British society. The curriculum has been designed to recognise and celebrate the diversity of the school community and the world we live in, throughout the curriculum, as well as during specific topics such as a recent Arts Festival focusing on 'Mother Africa' as a celebration of the art and heritage of the African continent. Other discrete topics teach and challenge pupils to be responsible, active citizens, who contribute positively to society, being well prepared for life in modern Britain, such as the topic 'A Better World', as well as this being an integral part of our curriculum approach.

#### **Curriculum Enrichment**

We secured funding for some exciting projects:

Globe sculpture project funded by The World Reimagined Learning Programme. In each school a globe was decorated and displayed for public viewing in local sculpture trails. The globes are now proudly displayed in our schools.

Where the Wild Things Are - imagined improvements to a child's school journey/environment in a shoebox. Funded by Create Your Docks.

The trust continues to fund enrichment activities so that there is no cost to families. Examples include Weekly Arts Champion's club (mixed BV and RW pupils), Digi-Champions club, after school clubs, sports clubs led by qualified sports coaches and theatre visits. Another example is an educational visit arranged for the STEM Clubat the start of the year the children suggested topics they were interested in and these were incorporated into their visit to the Science museum where the children experienced a 3D movie, 'A Beautiful Planet' detailing how the solar system works and the impact we are having on the planet.

Autumn term theatre visits:

Reception - Aladdin Pantomime

Year 1 - Cinderella

Year 2 - Matilda

Year 3 - Lion King

Year 4 - Wicked

Year 5 - Life of Pi

Year 6 - The Lion, the Witch and the Wardrobe

### **Website Improvements**

Both school websites are regularly checked for compliance and the Trust has recently added a Curriculum tab to give more prominence to the curriculum information the Trust shares (designed for parents). Under that tab each subject has a page with a brief introduction to our approach to teaching and learning in that subject and links to the curriculum overview document and an essential skills progression document.

Parents and visitors to the site can also view insights into the exciting learning experiences our children have in school by viewing the Year Group Learning Galleries tab. Under this tab, parents locate their child's year group and can then choose topics to see examples of the work children have been doing.

# Trustees' report (continued) For the year ended 31 August 2023

#### **Outcomes**

Through termly pupil progress meetings with each year group, senior leaders, the SENDCo and class teachers review attainment and progress and discuss adjustments to teaching for the following term as well as intervention for individual pupils.

Reception Good Level of Development, Year 1 phonics, KS1 and KS2 statutory assessments were completed for this year and the data has been submitted to the local authority/Primary Assessment Gateway. Where it is available, there are comparisons with national data. The results are as follows and will be examined in detail in the autumn term once more national data is available to us.

#### Reception Good Level of Development

BV 2023 All/PP%	RW 2023 All/PP%	England Average 2022	
Overall - 63/50	Overall - 70/75	Overall - 65	

#### Year 1 Phonics Check

BV 2023 All/PP%	RW 2023 All/PP%	England Average 2023 %
83/75	79/77	75

#### KS1 SATs

BV 2023 All/PP	RW 2023 All/PP	BV 2023 All/PP	RW 2023 All/PP	NA 2023 All/PP
EXS%	EXS%	GDS%	GDS%	EXS%
Reading 69/63	Reading 73/71	Reading 30/13	Reading 23/14	Reading 69/55
Writing 61/50	Writing 67/71	Writing 15/0	Writing 13/0	Writing 61/46
Maths 69/56	Maths 72/71	Maths 28/6	Maths 25/0	Maths 72/58
RWM 59/50	RWM 65/71	RWM 13/0	RWM 12/0	RWM 57/42

### KS2 SATs

BV 2023 All/PP EXS%	BV 2023 All/PP GDS%	NA 2023 AII/PP EXS%
Reading 73/58	Reading 30/5	Reading 73/60
Writing 62/53	Writing 12/5	Writing 71/58
SPAG 73/63	SPAG 40/11	SPAG 72/59
Maths 77/53	Maths 35/11	Maths 73/59
RWM 57/37	RWM 12/5	RWM 59/44

### Key for the above data:

PP - disadvantaged pupils who are entitled to the additional Pupil Premium Grant

EXS - Expected Standard

GDS - Greater Depth (higher standard)

Trustees' report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2023

#### Targeted use of grants:

<u>Pupil Premium Funding</u> and the <u>Recovery Premium</u> - (BV £16,965, RW - £5,945 - this grant was an additional £145 for pupils entitled to the pupil premium grant.)

This funding mainly contributes to the cost of small class sizes which enables pupils to have greater access to focused in-class support and care from their teacher. The grant also makes a contribution to the trust's pastoral care provided by the trust's Home School Support Officers and on-site Counsellor.

School Led Tutoring Grant - (BV - £18,468 RW - £5,022). This grant was used to provide additional tuition to pupils who have been identified for catch up interventions such as Lexia (for reading), online maths tuition and Speech Bubbles (for communication and well-being). In each school, 3 teaching assistants have completed the National Tutoring Program training course and provide some of the catch up sessions.

### Awards achieved this year

Britannia Village - Inclusion Quality Mark (assessment 24th & 25th January 2023)

#### **Key Financial Performance Indicators**

The key financial performance indicators set by the Trust are aimed at ensuring the financial viability of the organisation both short term and longer term. These are:

- setting and operating within a balanced budget as required by the Academy Trust Handbook achieved
- maintaining positive cash flow forecast for at least 12 months achieved
- keeping the level of staff cost below 80% the actual end of year total staff cost was 71% of revenue income.

The Board of Trustees is confident that staffing levels are closely monitored to agreed Full Time Equivalent and staffing structures are approved by the Board of Trustees.

The Finance and Audit Committee also monitor premises costs to General Annual Grant (GAG) income, capitation spend for curriculum departments to GAG income, total income less grants and cash flow on a regular basis to ensure that the budget is set and managed appropriately.

#### **Going Concern**

After making appropriate enquiries, the board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.

#### **Financial Review**

The principal source of funding for the Trust is the GAG and other grants that it received from the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA). For the year ended 31 August 2023 the Trust received £6,023,583 of GAG and other funding. A high percentage of this income is spent on wages and salaries and support costs to deliver the Trust's primary objective of the provision of education. During the year the Trust spent £6,435,703 on general running costs. The carry forward for 22/23 is £703,143 restricted general funding and £1,295,718 unrestricted funding.

Due to the accounting rules for the Local Government Pension under FRS102, the Trust is recognising a significant pension fund deficit of £107,000. This does not mean that an immediate liability for this amount crystallises and such a deficit generally results in a cash flow effect in the form of increased employer contributions over a number of years.

Trustees' report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2023

#### **Reserves Policy**

The Trustees are aware of the requirement to balance current and future needs and always aim to set a balanced budget with annual income balancing annual expenditure. The Trustees monitor estimated year-end carry forward figures via the monthly reports from the Head of Finance. The budget plan identifies how any carry forward will be allocated in the plan for the following academic year, including the identification of any funds earmarked for a specific project or purpose.

The Trustees have set up a designated fund for future building improvement projects by the Trust. This is funded by general unrestricted funds.

Restricted reserves have been built up to sufficient levels to be spent on education provision at its academies in the coming years while Royal Wharf Primary School continues to grow its pupils on roll at one year group per academic year.

The Trust has adopted a GAG and reserves pooling policy. All reserves derived from GAG funding are pooled, held and managed by the Trust. All other non-GAG reserves are held by the individual academies within the Trust.

### **Investment Policy**

The aim of the policy is to ensure funds that the Trust does not immediately need to cover anticipated expenditure are invested to maximise the Trust's income but with minimal risk. The aim is to research where funds may be deposited applying prudency in ensuring there is minimum risk. The Trust does not consider the investment of surplus funds as a primary activity, rather as good stewardship and as and when circumstances allow.

#### **Principal Risks and Uncertainties**

The Trustees maintain a risk register identifying the major risks to which the Trust is exposed, and identifying actions and procedures to mitigate those risks. A formal review of the risk register process is undertaken on an annual basis and the internal control systems and the exposure to said risks are monitored on behalf of the Trustees at each Finance and Audit Committee meeting. The principal risks facing the Trust are outlined below; those

facing the Schools at an operational level are addressed by its systems and by internal financial and other controls.

The Trustees Report that the Trust's financial and internal controls conform to guidelines issued by the ESFA, and that improvements to the wider framework of systems dealing with business risk and risk management strategy continue to be made and formally documented.

It is recognised that systems can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance that major risks have been adequately managed.

The level of financial risk is low. Cash flows can be reliably forecast, monitored and reported. Staff costs make up the majority of expenditure and are relatively stable with contingencies in place to cover such items as sickness and maternity.

The Trustees assess the other principal risks and uncertainties facing the Trust as follows:

• The Trust has considerable reliance on continued Government funding through the ESFA and there is no assurance that Government policy or practice will remain the same or that public funding will continue at the same levels or on the same terms.

# Trustees' report (continued) For the year ended 31 August 2023

- A fall in pupil numbers would result in less funding however BVPS provides an outstanding quality of education and is oversubscribed for entry to younger year groups. In order to mitigate against pupils leaving in Years 5 and 6, senior leaders at the School were successful in a joint bid to establish a secondary feeder school in Silvertown which is now well established. RWPS continues to grow with one additional year group on roll per year and had the highest number of applications for its reception intake, compared to the number of places available, in Newham.
- Failures in governance and/or management the risk in this area arises from potential failure to effectively manage the Trust's finances, internal controls, compliance with regulations and legislation, statutory returns, etc. The Trustees continue to review and ensure that appropriate measures are in place to mitigate these risks.
- Reputational the continuing success of the Schools is dependent on continuing to attract applicants in sufficient numbers by maintaining the highest educational standards. To mitigate this risk Trustees ensure that student progress and outcomes are closely monitored and reviewed.
- Safeguarding and child protection the Trustees continue to ensure that the highest standards are maintained in the areas of selection and monitoring of staff, the operation of child protection policies and procedures, health & safety and discipline.
- Staffing the success of the Schools is reliant on the quality of its staff and the Trustees monitor and review policies and procedures and recruitment to ensure continued development and training of staff as well as ensuring there is clear succession planning.
- Fraud and mismanagement of funds The Trust has appointed Price Bailey LLP to carry out independent and external checks on financial systems and records as required by the Academy Trust Handbook. All finance staff receive training to keep up to date with financial practice requirements and develop their skills in this area.
- Financial instruments the Trust only deals with bank balances, cash and trade creditors, with limited trade (and other) debtors. The risk in this area is considered to be low.
- Defined benefit pension liability as the Government has agreed to meet the defined benefit pension liability of any school ceasing to exist the main risk to the Trust is an annual cash flow funding of part of the deficit. Trustees take these payments into account when setting the annual budget plan.
- Legal claim made against the Trust the Trust has RPA insurance and Gold legal support through Winckworth Sherwood. The Trust has also developed relevant policies and risk assessments and ensures that, through induction and training, staff are aware and follow them.

The Trust has continued to strengthen its risk management process throughout the year by improving the process and ensuring staff awareness.

#### **Fundraising**

The Trust only held small fundraising events during the year and collection days for various charities. The Trust does not work with professional fundraisers or companies who carry out fundraising on its behalf. During the year no complaints or issues have arisen as a result of the fundraising events.

Trustees' report (continued)
For the year ended 31 August 2023

#### **Plans for Future Periods**

The Trustees aim to:

- Capital investment in improvements to the schools in the Trust
- Capital investment in a dedicated space for Trust wide admin staff
- Continue to focus on achieving high standards for pupils with end of key stage assessment results being above the national average
- Build on existing practices to recruit, develop and train staff to ensure a supply of good staff for future years
- Consider strategies to ensure that both schools achieve full pupil capacity in each year group
- Explore the potential for adding other new free schools to the MAT

#### **Auditor**

Insofar as the Trustees are aware:

- there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware
- the Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of the information.

The auditor, Kreston Reeves LLP, has indicated its willingness to continue in office. The Trustees will propose a motion re-appointing the auditor at a meeting of the Members.

The Trustees' report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the company directors, on 6 December 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

D5 G4C Rebecca Burton 13 Dec 2023 14:53:17 GMT (UTC +0)

R Burton

Chair of Trustees

#### **Governance Statement**

#### Scope of responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Britannia Education Trust has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

As Trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE's Governance Handbook and competency framework for governance.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the CEO/Executive Headteacher, as accounting officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between Britannia Education Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

#### Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' report and in the Statement of trustees' responsibilities. The **Board of Trustees** has formally met 3 times during the year.

Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:

Governor	Meetings attended	Out of a possible
R Burton, Chair of Trustees	2	3
D Mann, resigned 12 July 2023	2	3
E Boxer	3	3
H Fernandes	3	3
J Frith, staff Trustee, resigned 23 March 2023	2	2
L Bingham	3	3
L Dawes	3	3
T Peake	2	3
D Verroken	3	3
L Bingham, CEO/Executive Headteacher and accounting officer	3	3
S Obadan, appointed 17 April 2023	1	1
J Gordon, appointed 6 December 2023	0	0

#### Conflicts of interest:

To help manage conflicts of interest the Trust maintains an up to date register of interests for all members, trustees and senior management. The opportunity to declare interests is given at every meeting of the board of Trustees and their committees. When faced with a conflict of interest the person who holds an interest should withdraw from any meeting, be excluded from participating in the decision making process and should not vote on any matter relating to their interest. The conflict of interest will be recorded by the Clerk in the minutes of the meeting.

### Governance reviews:

The Governance structure and Scheme of Delegation are reviewed annually by the Board. As a result of the review, further Trustees have been added to the Board bringing specific skills in estates management. The current governance structure is deemed appropriate and effective. The Board of Trustees engaged the National Governance Association to carry out an external governance review in the 2021-22 academic year to ensure continued effective oversight.

#### **Governance Statement (continued)**

#### Governance (continued)

The **Finance and Audit Committee** is a sub-committee of the main board of Trustees. Its purpose is to ensure value for money, regularity and propriety in relation to the management of the Trust's funds and that the Trust's financial activities are conducted in line with funding agreements, the Academy Trust Handbook and the Trust's scheme of delegation.

Attendance during the year at meetings was as follows:

Governor	Meetings attended	Out of a possible
L Dawes, chair	4	4
D Mann	2	4
R Burton	4	4
T Peake	3	3
L Bingham	4	4

L Bingham is ex-officio and therefore does not vote at meetings even though she forms part of the Committee.

#### Review of value for money

As accounting officer, the CEO/Executive Headteacher has responsibility for ensuring that the Trust delivers good value in the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The accounting officer considers how the Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money during each academic year, and reports to the board of Trustees where value for money can be improved, including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The accounting officer for the Academy Trust has delivered improved value for money during the year by:

- Utilising resources available for free or low cost which enrich the curriculum such as free travel for educational visits where possible, Class Dojo, Google classroom;
- Implementing a range of strategies that bring potential trainee teachers into our Schools reducing advertising costs for ECTs;
- Constantly reviewing suppliers for good quality and value resources, including online purchases where appropriate and ensuring budget holders comply with limits set out in the financial procedures;
- The Trust purchased good quality laptops and other equipment for staff so that they were able to deliver remote learning to pupils from their homes should that become necessary and plan together virtually across the Trust's schools:
- Discontinuing a reading intervention because it was not considered to have had the desired impact and therefore was not seen as value for money;
- An improved order and approval system that enables budget holders to be more aware of their ongoing spend
- Continuing to challenge the Royal Wharf building contractor on defects identified in the building and whose responsibility it is to meet the cost of repairs

Overall the Trust was able to maintain value for money as well as ensuring safety and management of the Trust's buildings in spite of continued challenging circumstances.

### The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Academy Trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in Britannia Education Trust for the period to 31 August 2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

#### **Governance Statement (continued)**

#### Capacity to handle risk

The board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed together with the operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of Trustees is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the Academy Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the period to 31 August 2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the board of Trustees.

#### The risk and control framework

The Academy Trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. In particular, it includes:

- comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees;
- regular reviews by the Finance and Audit Committee of reports which indicate financial performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes;
- setting targets to measure financial and other performance;
- clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines;
- identification and management of risks.

The Board of Trustees has decided to employ Price Bailey as internal auditor.

The internal auditor's role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the Academy Trust's financial systems. In particular the checks carried out in the current period included:

testing of key financial controls

On an annual basis, the auditor reports to the board of Trustees, through the Finance and Audit Committee on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the board of Trustees' financial responsibilities and annually prepares an annual summary report to the committee outlining the areas reviewed, key findings, recommendations and conclusions to help the committee consider actions and assess year on year progress.

On an annual basis, the internal auditor reports to the Board of Trustees through the Finance and Audit Committee committee on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees' financial responsibilities and annually prepares a summary report to the committee outlining the areas reviewed, key findings, recommendations and conclusions to help the committee consider actions and assess year on year progress.

### **Governance Statement (continued)**

#### **Review of effectiveness**

As accounting officer, the CEO/Executive Headteacher has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

- the work of the internal auditor;
- the work of external auditor;
- the school resource management self-assessment tool;
- the work of the executive managers within the Trust's who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal control framework.
- the work of the external auditor;

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal control by the Finance and Audit Committee committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on and signed on their behalf by:

275 Bac Rebecca Burton 13 Dec 2023 14:53:17 GMT (UTC +0)

R Burton Chair of Trustees L Bingham Linda-May Bingham 07 Dec 2023 14:55:33 GMT (UTC +0)

L Bingham **Accounting Officer** 

#### Statement of Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As accounting officer of Britannia Education Trust I have considered my responsibility to notify the Academy Trust Board of Trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding, including for estates safety and management, under the funding agreement in place between the Academy Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration I have had due regard to the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2022, including responsibilities for estates safety and management.

I confirm that I and the Academy Trust Board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of all funds by the Academy Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the Academy Trust's funding agreement and the Academy Trust Handbook 2022.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of Trustees and ESFA.

L Bingham
Linda-May Bingham 07 Dec 2023 14:55:33 GMT (UTC +0)

L Bingham Accounting Officer Date:

### Statement of Trustees' responsibilities For the year ended 31 August 2023

The Trustees (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for preparing the Trustees' report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction published by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law, the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023;
- make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
- state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;
- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charitable company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the charitable company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 6 December 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

0.5 6.5.2.2.2.2.2.2.2.14:53:17 GMT (UTC +0)

R Burton

Chair of Trustees

#### Independent auditor's Report on the financial statements to the Members of Britannia Education Trust

### **Opinion**

We have audited the financial statements of Britannia Education Trust (the 'trust') for the year ended 31 August 2023 which comprise the Statement of financial activities, the Balance sheet, the Statement of cash flows and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland', the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the Academy Trust's affairs as at 31 August 2023 and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then ended:
- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency.

### **Basis for opinion**

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Academy Trust in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom, including the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

### Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Academy Trust's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Trustees with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.

# Independent auditor's Report on the financial statements to the Members of Britannia Education Trust (continued)

#### Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual report other than the financial statements and our Auditor's report thereon. The Trustees are responsible for the other information contained within the Annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

### Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the Trustees' report including the Strategic report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
- the Trustees' report and the Strategic report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

#### Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Academy Trust and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' report including the Strategic report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
- certain disclosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

### Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of trustees' responsibilities, the Trustees (who are also the directors of the Academy Trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy Trust's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidate the Academy Trust or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

# Independent auditor's Report on the financial statements to the Members of Britannia Education Trust (continued)

#### Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an Auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below:

#### Capability of the audit in detecting irregularities, including fraud

Based on our understanding of the Academy Trust and the sector, and through discussion with the Trustees and other management (as required by auditing standards), we identified that the principal risks of non-compliance with laws and regulations related to child protection and safeguarding, health and safety and employment law. We considered the extent to which non-compliance might have a material effect on the financial statements. We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the preparation of the financial statements such as the Companies Act 2006, Statement of Recommended Practice, Academies Accounts Direction, Academy Trust Handbook, taxation, and pension legislation. We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of non-compliance throughout the audit. We evaluated management's incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements (including the risk of override of controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to posting inappropriate journal entries to increase revenue or reduce expenditure, management bias in accounting estimates and judgemental areas of the financial statements such as the valuation of land and buildings and revenue and non-compliance with financial management and governance requirements which are consistent with the obligations of public funded bodies. Audit procedures performed by the engagement team included:

- Discussions with management and assessment of known or suspected instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations (including health and safety) and fraud, and review of the reports made by management and internal audit; and
- Assessment of identified fraud risk factors; and Identifying and assessing the design effectiveness of controls that management has in place to prevent and detect fraud; and
- Consideration of income streams, completeness of income and compliance with the obligations of funders including the ESFA; and
- Testing of internal controls procedures relating to expenditure potentially more susceptible to fraud and other irregularities including the misuse of public funding in areas such as cash, payroll and credit card expenditure; and
- Review of cash and credit card expenditure to confirm no evidence of personal benefit; and
- Challenging assumptions and judgements made by management in its significant accounting estimates; and
- Checking and reperforming the reconciliation of key control accounts; and
- Performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships, including related party transactions, that may indicate risks of material misstatement due to fraud; and
- Confirmation of related parties with management, and review of transactions throughout the period to identify any previously undisclosed transactions with related parties outside the normal course of business; and
- Reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance, reviewing internal audit reports and reviewing correspondence with relevant tax and regulatory authorities; and
- Review of internal controls and physical inspection of tangible assets susceptible to fraud or irregularity; and
- Review of significant and unusual transactions and evaluation of the underlying financial rationale supporting the transactions: and

## Independent auditor's Report on the financial statements to the Members of Britannia Education Trust (continued)

• Identifying and testing journal entries, in particular any manual entries made at the year end for financial statement preparation.

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, there is a risk that we will not detect all irregularities, including those leading to a material misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with regulation. This risk increases the more that compliance with a law or regulation is removed from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, as we will be less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance. The risk is also greater regarding irregularities occurring due to fraud rather than error, as fraud involves intentional concealment, forgery, collusion, omission or misrepresentation.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs (UK), we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
  are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion of the effectiveness
  of the Academy Trust's internal control.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Trustees.
- Conclude on the appropriateness of the Trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Academy Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in my Auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my Auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Academy Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.
- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Independent auditor's Report on the financial statements to the Members of Britannia Education Trust (continued)

### Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Academy Trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Academy Trust's members those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Academy Trust and its members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Susan Robinson BA FCA FCIE DChA (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of **Kreston Reeves LLP** Statutory Auditor Chartered Accountants Chatham Maritime

( reclos leeves ht?

8 December 2023

## Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to Britannia Education Trust and the Education and Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 5 August 2022 and further to the requirements of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by Britannia Education Trust during the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to Britannia Education Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Britannia Education Trust and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than Britannia Education Trust and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

## Respective responsibilities of Britannia Education Trust's accounting officer and the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of Britannia Education Trust's funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 21 December 2017 and the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1 September 2022, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

# Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to Britannia Education Trust and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (continued) Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the Academy Trust's income and expenditure.

#### Work undertaken

- Reviewed the evidence used to support the Accounting Officer's sign off of the regularity statement.
- Reviewed expenditure against specific terms of grant funding within the Funding Agreement.
- Reviewed that grants have been applied for the purposes for which they were intended.
- Confirmed that internal control procedures exist relating to expenditure incurred of cash and credit cards.
- Confirmed items claimed on cash and credit cards are not not for personal benefit.
- Reviewed expenditure and considered whether any supplies are from related parties.
- Reviewed Board of Trustee minutes for declaration of interests.
- Considered whether other income activities are permitted within the Academy Trust's charitable objects.
- Considered if borrowing agreements, including leases, have been made in accordance with the Academies Financial Handbook.
- Confirmed that procurement and tendering procedures exist relating to expenditure and have been complied with.
- Considered if the Trust's governance arrangements and composition are in-line with the Academy Trust Handbook 2022.

### Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggest in all material respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the year 1 September 2022 to 31 August 2023 has not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Reporting Accountant Kreston Reeves LLP Chartered Accountants

Crecion Leeves LLP

Date:

# Statement of financial activities (incorporating income and expenditure account) For the year ended 31 August 2023

	Note	Unrestricted funds 2023 £	Restricted funds 2023	Restricted fixed asset funds 2023	Total funds 2023 £	Total funds 2022 £
Income from:						
Donations and capital						070 444
grants	4	-	-	29,336	29,336	278,444
Other trading activities Investments	6 7	144,507 16,260	-	-	144,507 16,260	73,562 1,038
Charitable activities	1	820	- 5,832,660	<u>-</u>	5,833,480	5,155,565
Chantable activities		620	5,832,860	-	5,633,460	3, 133,303
Total income		161,587	5,832,660	29,336	6,023,583	5,508,609
Expenditure on:						
Charitable activities	8	28,592	6,015,543	391,568	6,435,703	5,944,598
Total expenditure		28,592	6,015,543	391,568	6,435,703	5,944,598
Net income/(expenditure)		132,995	(182,883)	(362,232)	(412,120)	(435,989)
Transfers between funds	18	-	(294,329)	294,329	-	-
Net movement in						
funds before other recognised gains		132,995	(477,212)	(67,903)	(412,120)	(435,989)
Other recognised gains:						
Actuarial gains on defined benefit						
pension schemes	24	-	501,000	-	501,000	1,557,000
Net movement in						
funds		132,995	23,788	(67,903)	88,880	1,121,011
Reconciliation of funds:						
Total funds brought		4 4 4 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2		40 445 554	40.000.040	44 440 00=
forward		1,140,202	679,355	10,413,691	12,233,248	11,112,237
Net movement in funds		132,995	23,788	(67,903)	88,880	1,121,011
Total funds carried forward		1,273,197	703,143	10,345,788	12,322,128	12,233,248

The Statement of financial activities includes all gains and losses recognised in the year.

The notes on pages 30 to 56 form part of these financial statements.

### **Britannia Education Trust**

(A company limited by guarantee) Registered number: 10689559

### **Balance sheet**

As at 31 August 2023

	Note		2023 £		2022 £
Fixed assets					
Tangible assets	15		10,345,788		10,413,691
Current assets					
Debtors	16	227,194		433,272	
Cash at bank and in hand		2,419,595		2,364,146	
		2,646,789		2,797,418	
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year	17	(563,449)		(458,861)	
Net current assets			2,083,340		2,338,557
Total assets less current liabilities			12,429,128		12,752,248
Defined benefit pension scheme liability	24		(107,000)		(519,000)
Total net assets			12,322,128		12,233,248
Funds of the Academy Trust					
Restricted funds:					
Fixed asset funds	18	10,345,788		10,413,691	
Restricted income funds	18	810,143		1,198,355	
Restricted funds excluding pension asset	18	11,155,931	•	11,612,046	
Pension reserve	18	(107,000)		(519,000)	
Total restricted funds	18		11,048,931		11,093,046
Unrestricted income funds	18		1,273,197		1,140,202
Total funds		•	12,322,128	•	12,233,248
		:		-	

The financial statements on pages 27 to 56 were approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue on 06 December 2023 and are signed on their behalf, by:

**D** 5 **G** C 2023 14:53:17 GMT (UTC +0)

R Burton

Chair of Trustees

The notes on pages 30 to 56 form part of these financial statements.

## Statement of cash flows For the year ended 31 August 2023

Cash flows from operating activities	Note	2023 £	2022 £
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities	20	333,518	(139,032)
Cash flows from investing activities	21	(278,069)	165,838
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year		55,449	26,806
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year		2,364,146	2,337,340
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year	22, 23	2,419,595	2,364,146

The notes on pages 30 to 56 form part of these financial statements

### Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

#### 1. General information

Britannia Education Trust is a charitable company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity incorporated in England and Wales. The registered office is Britannia Village Primary School. Westwood Road, West Silvertown, London, United Kingdom, E16 2AW. The principal activity of the Academy Trust is to provide an education for pupils that satisfies the requirements of the Education Act 2002.

### 2. Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where noted), judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

### 2.1 Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.

Britannia Education Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.

The Trust's functional and presentational currency is Pounds Sterling.

#### 2.2 Going concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Academy Trust to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have concluded that the Academy Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncertainties about the Academy Trust's ability to continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

### 2. Accounting policies (continued)

#### 2.3 Income

All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy Trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is probable and the amount can be measured reliably.

#### Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of financial activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the Balance sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of financial activities in the year for which it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent amounts of capital grants are reflected in the Balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are recognised when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended.

#### Other income

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the extent the Academy Trust has provided the goods or services.

### • Donated fixed assets (excluding transfers on conversion or into the Trust)

Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to measure this reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is recognised as 'Income from Donations and Capital Grants' and a corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance with the Academy Trust's accounting policies.

### 2.4 Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

#### Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the Academy Trust's educational operations, including support costs and costs relating to the governance of the Academy Trust's apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT.

### Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

### 2. Accounting policies (continued)

#### 2.5 Interest receivable

Interest on funds held on deposit is included when receivable and the amount can be measured reliably by the Trust; this is normally upon notification of the interest paid or payable by the institution with whom the funds are deposited.

#### 2.6 Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £2,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of financial activities and carried forward in the Balance sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of financial activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under construction, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

Depreciation is provided on the following bases:

Long-term leasehold property - 50 years straight line Furniture and equipment - 5 years straight line Computer equipment - 3 years straight line

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of financial activities.

#### 2.7 Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered. Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

#### 2.8 Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account.

#### 2.9 Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the Balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the Academy Trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide.

Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

### 2. Accounting policies (continued)

#### 2.10 Financial instruments

The Academy Trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial assets and financial liabilities of the Academy Trust and their measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 16. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 17. Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

### 2.11 Operating leases

Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight line basis over the lease term.

#### 2.12 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme ("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over employees' working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the Academy Trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each Balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of financial activities and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.

### Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

### 2. Accounting policies (continued)

### 2.13 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Designated funds comprise unrestricted funds that have been set aside by the Trustees for particular purposes. The aim and use of each designated fund is set out in the notes to the financial statements.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

Investment income, gains and losses are allocated to the appropriate fund.

#### Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

#### 3. Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

Multi-employer defined benefit pension scheme

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 24, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2022 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2023. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability.

#### Tangible fixed assets

The Academy Trust has recognised tangible fixed assets with a carrying value of £10,345,788 at the reporting date (see note 15). These assets are stated at their cost less provision for depreciation and impairment. The Academy Trust's accounting policy sets out the approach to calculating depreciation for immaterial assets acquired. For material assets such as land and buildings the Academy Trust determines at acquisition reliable estimates for the useful life of the asset, its residual value and decommissioning costs. These estimates are based upon such factors as the expected use of the acquired asset and market conditions. At subsequent reporting dates the Trustees consider whether there are any factors such as technological advancements or changes in market conditions that indicate a need to reconsider the estimates used.

Where there are indicators that the carrying value of tangible assets may be impaired the Academy Trust undertakes tests to determine the recoverable amount of assets. These tests require estimates of the fair value of assets less cost to sell and of their value in use. Wherever possible the estimate of the fair value of assets is based upon observable market prices less incremental cost for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based upon a discounted cash flow model, based upon the Academy Trusts' forecasts for the foreseeable future which do not include any restructuring activities that the Academy Trust is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset's performance. The recoverable amount is most sensitive to the discount rate used for the discounted cash flow model as well expected future cash flows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

#### Critical areas of judgment:

#### Lease commitments

The Academy Trust has entered into a range of lease commitments in respect of plant and equipment. The classification of these leases as either financial or operating leases requires the Trustees to consider whether the terms and conditions of each lease are such that the Academy Trust has acquired the risks and rewards associated with the ownership of the underlying assets.

#### Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

#### 3. Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgment (continued)

Multi-employer defined benefit pension scheme

Certain employees participate in a multi-employer defined benefit pension scheme with other companies in the region. In the judgement of the Trustees the Academy Trust does not have sufficient information of the plans assets and liabilities to be able to reliably account for its share of the defined obligation and plan assets. Therefore the scheme is accounted for as a defined contribution scheme, see note 24 for further details.

#### 4. Income from donations and capital grants

	Restricted fixed asset funds 2023 £	Total funds 2023 £	Total funds 2022 £
Capital Grants	29,336	29,336	278,444

# Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

# 5. Funding for the Trust's provision of education

	Unrestricted funds 2023 £	Restricted funds 2023 £	Total funds 2023 £	Total funds 2022 £
DfE/ESFA Grants				
General Annual Grant (GAG)	-	4,259,716	4,259,716	3,744,630
Pupil Premium	-	232,637	232,637	213,981
Universal Infant Free School Meals	-	130,273	130,273	117,714
Other DfE Group grants	-	311,630	311,630	287,508
Other Government grants	-	4,934,256	4,934,256	4,363,833
Local Authority Grants	-	898,404	898,404	790,400
Other funding	-	898,404	898,404	790,400
Catering Income	820	-	820	1,332
	820		820	1,332
	820	5,832,660	5,833,480	5,155,565
	820	5,832,660	5,833,480	5,155,565
Total 2022	1,332	5,154,233	5,155,565	

# Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

# 6. Other trading activities

				Unrestricted funds 2023 £	Total funds 2023 £	Total funds 2022 £
	Other income			144,507	144,507	73,562
	Total 2022			73,562	73,562	
7.	Investment income					
				Unrestricted funds 2023 £	Total funds 2023 £	Total funds 2022 £
	Investment income			16,260	16,260	1,038
	Total 2022			1,038	1,038	
8.	Expenditure					
		Staff Costs 2023 £	Premises 2023 £		Total 2023 £	Total 2022 £
	Direct costs	2,699,807	-	490,694	3,190,501	3,057,659
	Allocated support costs	1,826,344	433,669	985,189	3,245,202	2,886,939
		4,526,151	433,669	1,475,883	6,435,703	5,944,598
	Total 2022	4,258,909	329,405	1,356,284	5,944,598	

# Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

# 9. Analysis of expenditure by activities

	Activities undertaken directly 2023 £	Support costs 2023 £	Total funds 2023 £	Total funds 2022 £
Educational operations	3,190,501	3,245,202	6,435,703	5,944,598
Total 2022	3,057,659	2,886,939	5,944,598	
Analysis of direct costs				
		Educational operations 2023	Total funds 2023 £	Total funds 2022 £
Staff costs Educational materials		operations 2023 £ 2,699,807 285,518	funds 2023 £ 2,699,807 285,518	funds 2022 £ 2,578,644 321,697
		operations 2023 £ 2,699,807	funds 2023 £ 2,699,807	funds 2022 £ 2,578,644
Educational materials Computer costs		operations 2023 £ 2,699,807 285,518 14,928	funds 2023 £ 2,699,807 285,518 14,928	funds 2022 £ 2,578,644 321,697 13,764

### Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

# 9. Analysis of expenditure by activities (continued)

## **Analysis of support costs**

	Educational operations 2023 £	Total funds 2023 £	Total funds 2022 £
Pension finance costs	18,000	18,000	28,000
Staff costs	1,504,743	1,504,743	1,303,800
Depreciation	391,568	391,568	356,099
Premises costs	433,669	433,669	317,516
Technology costs	84,136	84,136	51,528
Other support costs	463,546	463,546	376,851
Governance costs	12,747	12,747	16,495
Legal & professional costs	15,192	15,192	60,185
Agency staff costs	321,601	321,601	376,465
	3,245,202	3,245,202	2,886,939
Total 2022	2,886,939	2,886,939	

## 10. Net income/(expenditure)

Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes:

	2023 £	2022 £
Operating lease rentals	416	416
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets	391,568	356,099
Fees paid to auditor for:		
- audit	14,900	13,200
- other services	3,000	2,750
	=======================================	

### Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

#### 11. Staff

#### a. Staff costs

Staff costs during the year were as follows:

	2023 £	2022 £
Wages and salaries	3,191,843	2,818,214
Social security costs	379,386	295,391
Pension costs	633,321	768,839
	4,204,550	3,882,444
Agency staff costs	321,601	376,465
	4,526,151	4,258,909

#### b. Staff numbers

The average number of persons employed by the Academy Trust during the year was as follows:

	2023	2022
	No.	No.
Teachers	44	39
Administration and support	48	41
Management	7	9
	99	89
The average headcount expressed as full-time equivalents was:		
	2023 No.	2022 No.
Teachers	40	39
Administration and support	36	31
Management	7	9
	83	79

#### Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

#### 11. Staff (continued)

#### c. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000 was:

	2023 No.	2022 No.
In the band £60,001 - £70,000	3	2
In the band £70,001 - £80,000	2	1
In the band £120,001 - £130,000	1	1

#### d. Key management personnel

The key management personnel of the Academy Trust comprise the Trustees and the senior management team as listed on page 1. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions and employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to the Academy Trust was £415,179 (2022 - £320,463).

#### 12. Central services

The Trust has provided the following central service to its academies during the financial year: financial services; educational support services; and human resources.

In accordance with the funding agreement with the DfE, the Trust pools the General Annual Grant (GAG) and therefore does not recharge out central services.

#### 13. Trustees' remuneration and expenses

One or more Trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment with the Academy Trust. The CEO and other staff Trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services they provide undertaking the roles of CEO and staff members under their contracts of employment. The value of Trustees' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

		2023	2022
		£	£
L Bingham	Remuneration	120,000 -	120,000 -
		125,000	125,000
	Pension contributions paid	25,000 -	25,000 -
		30,000	30,000
J Frith	Remuneration	5,000 -	5,000 -
		10,000	10,000
	Pension contributions paid	0 - 5,000	0 - 5,000

During the year ended 31 August 2023, no Trustee expenses have been incurred (2022 - £NIL).

### Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

#### 14. Trustees' and Officers' insurance

In accordance with normal commercial practice, the Academy Trust has purchased insurance to protect Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy business. The insurance provides cover up to £10,000,000. The cost of this insurance is included in the total insurance cost.

## 15. Tangible fixed assets

	Long-term leasehold property £	Furniture and equipment £	Computer equipment £	Total £
Cost or valuation				
At 1 September 2022	10,789,217	449,288	545,656	11,784,161
Additions	65,690	166,816	91,159	323,665
Disposals	-	(680)	(3,633)	(4,313)
At 31 August 2023	10,854,907	615,424	633,182	12,103,513
Depreciation				
At 1 September 2022	706,414	298,934	365,122	1,370,470
Charge for the year	216,559	58,380	116,629	391,568
On disposals	-	(680)	(3,633)	(4,313)
At 31 August 2023	922,973	356,634	478,118	1,757,725
Net book value				
At 31 August 2023	9,931,934	258,790	155,064	10,345,788
At 31 August 2022	10,082,803	150,354	180,534	10,413,691

### Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

#### 16. Debtors

		2023 £	2022 £
	Due within one year		
	Trade debtors	6,710	5,362
	Amounts owed by group undertakings	-	-
	Other debtors	26,848	25,234
	Prepayments and accrued income	193,636	402,676
		227,194	433,272
17.	Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year		
		2023 £	2022 £
	Trade creditors	163,390	135,680
	Other taxation and social security	79,373	72,990
	Other creditors	67,560	60,558
	Accruals and deferred income	253,126	189,633
		563,449	458,861
		2023 £	2022 £
	Deferred income at 1 September 2022	86,198	143,987
	Resources deferred during the year	101,696	86,198
	Amounts released from previous periods	(86,198)	(143,987)
		101,696	86,198

Deferred income received relates to Universal Infant Free School Meals income and other ESFA income relating to the Autumn Term 2023.

# Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

## 18. Statement of funds

	Balance at 1 September 2022 £	Income £	Expenditure £	Transfers in/out £	Gains/ (Losses) £	Balance at 31 August 2023 £
Unrestricted funds						
Designated funds						
Building improvement fund	1,100,000		<u>-</u>	<u>-</u>		1,100,000
General funds						
General Funds	40,202	161,587	(28,592)	-	-	173,197
Total Unrestricted funds	1,140,202	161,587	(28,592)	<u>-</u>	-	1,273,197
Restricted general funds						
General Annual Grant (GAG) Pupil Premium	1,198,355 -	4,259,716 232,637	(4,353,599) (232,637)	(294,329)	-	810,143 -
Universal Infant Free School Meals	-	130,273	(130,273)	-	-	-
Other DfE/ESFA Grants	-	311,630	(311,630)	-	-	-
Other Government Grants	-	898,404	(898,404)	-	-	-
Pension reserve	(519,000)	-	(89,000)	-	501,000	(107,000)
	679,355	5,832,660	(6,015,543)	(294,329)	501,000	703,143
Restricted fixed asset funds						
Fixed Asset Funds	10,413,691	-	(391,568)	323,665	-	10,345,788
DfE Group Capital Grants	-	29,336	-	(29,336)	-	-
	10,413,691	29,336	(391,568)	294,329	-	10,345,788

#### Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

#### 18. Statement of funds (continued)

	Balance at 1 September 2022 £	Income £	Expenditure £	Transfers in/out £	Gains/ (Losses) £	Balance at 31 August 2023 £
Total Restricted funds	11,093,046	5,861,996	(6,407,111)	-	501,000	11,048,931
Total funds	12,233,248	6,023,583	(6,435,703)	<u>-</u>	501,000	12,322,128

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

Unrestricted funds are applied to the general work of the Academy Trust to support activities inside and outside the curriculum.

GAG represents to be used to cover normal running costs of the Academy Trust.

Pupil premium is an ESFA grant given to schools for under privileged children to help improve their education and reduce the attainment gap.

UIFSM supports schools in delivering the legal requirement to offer free school meals to all reception, year 1 and year 2 pupils.

Other DfE/ESFA grants represent those grants provided for specific purposes, such as universal infant free schools, teachers pay and teachers pension grants.

Other government grants represent those grants provided for specific purposes, such as early years and SEN funding, to provide additional support to the pupils where required.

The restricted fixed asset fund represents the tangible fixed assets including depreciation to the Balance Sheet date. Capital grants are also represented and provide the Academy Trust with its own capital money to address improvements to buildings and other facilities.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academy Trust was not subject to a limit on the amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2023.

### Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

# 18. Statement of funds (continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

	Balance at 1 September 2021 £	Income £	Expenditure £	Transfers in/out £	Gains/ (Losses) £	Balance at 31 August 2022 £
Unrestricted funds						
Designated funds						
Building improvement fund				1,100,000		1,100,000
General funds						
General Funds	1,094,134	75,932	(29,864)	(1,100,000)	-	40,202
Total Unrestricted funds	1,094,134	75,932	(29,864)	<u>-</u>		1,140,202
Restricted						
general funds						
General Annual Grant (GAG) Pupil Premium Universal Infant	1,152,607 -	3,744,630 213,981	(3,877,032) (213,981)	178,150 -	-	1,198,355 -
Free School Meals	-	117,714	(117,714)	-	-	-
Other DfE/ESFA Grants	-	287,508	(287,508)	-	-	-
Other Government Grants	-	790,400	(790,400)	-	-	-
Pension Reserve	(1,804,000)	-	(272,000)	-	1,557,000	(519,000)
	(651,393)	5,154,233	(5,558,635)	178,150	1,557,000	679,355
Restricted fixed asset funds						
Fixed Asset Funds	10,656,146	-	(356,099)	113,644	-	10,413,691
DfE Group Capital Grants	13,350	278,444	-	(291,794)	-	-

### Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

#### 18. Statement of funds (continued)

	Balance at 1 September 2021 £	Income £	Expenditure £	Transfers in/out £	Gains/ (Losses) £	Balance at 31 August 2022 £
	10,669,496	278,444	(356,099)	(178,150)	-	10,413,691
Total Restricted funds	10,018,103	5,432,677	(5,914,734)		1,557,000	11,093,046
Total funds	11,112,237	5,508,609	(5,944,598)		1,557,000	12,233,248

## Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balances for each academy at 31 August 2023 and 31 August 2022 were zero, hence a breakdown by academy is not included in these accounts.

## Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

	Teaching and educational support staff costs £	Other support staff costs £	Educational supplies £	Other costs excluding depreciation £	Total 2023 £	Total 2022 £
Britannia Village Primary School	1,708,663	832,686	315,978	726,173	3,583,500	3,422,448
Royal Wharf Primary School	991,144	601,057	133,471	415,829	2,141,501	1,675,853
Britannia Education Trust	-	71,000	41,245	206,889	319,134	490,198
Academy Trust	2,699,807	1,504,743	490,694	1,348,891	6,044,135	5,588,499

### Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

# 19. Analysis of net assets between funds

# Analysis of net assets between funds - current year

	Unrestricted funds 2023 £	Restricted funds 2023 £	Restricted fixed asset funds 2023 £	Total funds 2023 £
Tangible fixed assets	-	-	10,345,788	10,345,788
Current assets	1,273,197	1,373,592	-	2,646,789
Creditors due within one year	-	(563,449)	-	(563,449)
Provisions for liabilities and charges	-	(107,000)	-	(107,000)
Total	1,273,197	703,143	10,345,788	12,322,128
Analysis of net assets between funds - price	or year			
			Restricted	
	Unrestricted	Restricted	fixed asset	Total
	funds 2022	funds 2022	funds 2022	funds 2022
	£	£	£	£
Tangible fixed assets	-	-	10,413,691	10,413,691
Current assets	1,123,031	1,674,387	-	2,797,418
Creditors due within one year	17,171	(476,032)	-	(458,861)
Provisions for liabilities and charges	-	(519,000)	-	(519,000)
Total	1,140,202	679,355	10,413,691	12,233,248

# Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

# 20. Reconciliation of net expenditure to net cash flow from operating activities

		2023 £	2022 £
	Net expenditure for the year (as per Statement of financial activities)	(412,120)	(435,989)
	Adjustments for:		
	Depreciation	391,568	356,099
	Capital grants from DfE and other capital income	(29,336)	(278,444)
	Interest receivable	(16,260)	(1,038)
	Pension liability movements	89,000	272,000
	Decrease/(increase) in debtors	206,078	(92,330)
	Increase/(decrease) in creditors	104,588	40,670
	Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities	333,518	(139,032)
21.	Cash flows from investing activities		
		2023 £	2022 £
	Dividends, interest and rents from investments	16,260	1,038
	Purchase of tangible fixed assets	(323,665)	(113,644)
	Capital grants from DfE Group	29,336	278,444
	Net cash (used in)/provided by investing activities	(278,069)	165,838
22.	Analysis of cash and cash equivalents		
		2023 £	2022 £
	Cash in hand and at bank	2,419,595	2,364,146
	Total cash and cash equivalents	2,419,595	2,364,146

#### Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

#### 23. Analysis of changes in net debt

	At 1 September 2022 £	Cash flows £	At 31 August 2023 £
Cash at bank and in hand	2,364,146	55,449	2,419,595
	2,364,146	55,449	2,419,595

#### 24. Pension commitments

The Academy Trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by London Borough of Newham. Both are multi-employer defined benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31 March 2022.

Contributions amounting to £64,223 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2023 (2022 - £60,211) and are included within creditors.

#### **Teachers' Pension Scheme**

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in academies. All teachers have the option to opt-out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes contributions, as a percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.

Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

#### 24. Pension commitments (continued)

#### Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation report was published by the Department for Education on 5 March 2019. The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation are:

- employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration levy)
- total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service to the effective date of £218,100 million and notional assets (estimated future contributions together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £196,100 million, giving a notional past service deficit of £22,000 million
- the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current SCAPE rate is 2.4% above the rate of CPI, assumed real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real earnings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The assumed nominal rate of return including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2024.

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £366,013 (2022 - £376,164).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website (https://www.teacherspensions.co.uk/news/employers/2019/04/teachers-pensions-valuation-report.aspx).

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The Academy Trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The Academy Trust has set out above the information available on the scheme.

#### **Local Government Pension Scheme**

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2023 was £246,000 (2022 - £176,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £191,000 (2022 - £137,000) and employees' contributions totalled £55,000 (2022 - £39,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 19.3 per cent for employers and 5.5 - 12.5 per cent for employees.

As described in note the LGPS obligation relates to the employees of the Academy Trust, who were the employees transferred as part of the conversion from the maintained school and new employees who were eligible to, and did, join the Scheme in the year. The obligation in respect of employees who transferred on conversion represents their cumulative service at both the predecessor school and the Academy Trust at the balance sheet date.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the Department for Education reaffirmed its commitment to the guarantee, with a parliamentary minute published on GOV.UK.

### Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

## 24. Pension commitments (continued)

## Principal actuarial assumptions

	2023 %	2022 %
Rate of increase in salaries	3.85	3.95
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation	2.85	2.95
Discount rate for scheme liabilities	5.30	4.25
Inflation assumption (CPI)	2.85	2.95
Inflation assumption (RPI)	3.85	3.95

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:

	2023 Years	2022 Years
Retiring today		
Males	19.6	21.4
Females	23.0	24.1
Retiring in 20 years		
Males	21.0	23.0
Females	24.5	25.7

# Sensitivity analysis

	2023 £000	2022 £000
Discount rate +0.1%	(34,000)	(43,000)
Discount rate -0.1%	33,000	44,000
Mortality assumption - 1 year increase	49,000	58,000
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease	(48,000)	(56,000)
CPI rate +0.1%	2,000	5,000
CPI rate -0.1%	(2,000)	(5,000)

### Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

## 24. Pension commitments (continued)

#### Share of scheme assets

The Academy Trust's share of the assets in the scheme was:

The Academy Trust's share of the assets in the scheme was:		
	At 31 August 2023 £	At 31 August 2022 £
Equities	1,009,000	816,000
Gilts	-	98,000
Other bonds	215,000	-
Property	166,000	227,000
Cash and other liquid assets	52,000	73,000
Alternative Assets	205,000	178,000
Total market value of assets	1,647,000	1,392,000
The actual return on scheme assets was £16,000 (2022 - £56,000).		
The amounts recognised in the Statement of financial activities are as follows	S:	
	2023 £	2022 £
Current service cost	(261,000)	(380,000)
Interest cost	(18,000)	(28,000)
Administrative expenses	(1,000)	(1,000)
Total amount recognised in the Statement of financial activities	(280,000)	(409,000)
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations were as follow	vs:	
	2023	2022

#### Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

#### 24. Pension commitments (continued)

Changes in the fair value of the Academy Trust's share of scheme assets were as follows:

	2023 £	2022 £
At 1 September	1,392,000	1,168,000
Return on assets	(48,000)	35,000
Interest income	64,000	21,000
Employer contributions	191,000	137,000
Employee contributions	55,000	39,000
Benefits paid	(27,000)	(7,000)
Other actuarial gains/(losses)	21,000	-
Administration expenses	(1,000)	(1,000)
At 31 August	1,647,000	1,392,000

#### 25. Operating lease commitments

At 31 August 2023 the Academy Trust had commitments to make future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

	2023 £	2022 £
Not later than 1 year	416	416
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years	554	1,040
	970	1,456

## 26. Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be a member.

Notes to the financial statements For the year ended 31 August 2023

#### 27. Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the academy and the composition of the Board of Trustees being drawn from local public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the trustees have an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the academy's financial regulations and normal procurement procedures relating to connected and related party transactions.

The following related party transactions took place in the financial period:

During the year Britannia Education Trust made 2 donations to the West Silvertown Foundation totalling £19,940 (2022: £23,426). These are related party transactions due to Helen Fernandes (a trustee) being the CEO of the West Silvertown Foundation. The ESFA were notified of these transactions. As at 31 August 2023 £4,221 was owed to the West Silvertown Foundation (2022: Nil) In entering into this transaction the Academy Trust has complied with the requirements of the Academy Trust Handbook 2022.